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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL

36 CLINTON STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-5300 J-800-852-3345 Ext 5300

Ftx; 603-271-5395 TDD Access: 1-860-735-2964

wtvw.<lhhs,Rh.gov

December 23, 2024

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, Nev\/ Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, New Hampshire Hospital, to
enter Into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Granite VNA, Inc. (VC #174069),
Concord, NH, to continue speech therapy services at New Hampshire Hospital, by exercising a
renewal option by increasing the price iimitatlon by $10,000 from $19,998 to $29,998 and by
extending the completion date from June 30. 2025 to June 30, 2027. effective July 1.2025, upon
Governor and Council approval. 30% General Funds. 70% Other Funds (Provider Fees and Intra-
Agency Transfers).

The original contract was approved by the Department of Health and Human Services on
June 9, 2021. and amended and approved by the Governor and Executive Council on January
18. 2023, item #22.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following account in Stale Fiscal Years 2026
and 2027, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances
between state fiscal years through the Budget Offic©. if needed and justified.

05-95-94-940010-87500000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS DEPT OF, HNS: NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL,
ACUTE PSYCHIATRIC SERVICES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 101/500729
Contracts for

Program
Services

94057300 $4,999 $0 $4,999

2023 101/500729

Contracts for

Program
Services

94057300 $4,999 $0 $4,999

2024 101/500729

Contracts for

Program
Services

94057300 $5,000 $0 $5,000
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2025 101/500729

Contracts for

Program
Services

94057300 $5,000 $0 $5,000

2026 101/500729

Contracts for
Program
Services

94057300 $0 $5,000 .  $5,000

2027 101/500729

Contracts for

Program
Services

94057300 $0 $5,000 $5,000

TOTAL $19,998 $10,000 $29,998

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source bepause MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
originally approved as sole source be identified as sole source. Due to the highly personalized
nature of the services and population who receive the services, the Department is requesting to
exercise a contract renewal option to ensure there Is no Interruption to the on-site continuity of
care for patients at New Hampshire Hospital.

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to continue providing skilled Speech
Therapy Services to vulnerable, acute psychiatric patients at New Hampshire Hospital, including
the new High Security Unit (HSU) upon being operational. New Hampshire Hospital patients
require inten/entions that include specialized training, equipment, and/or techniques.

Approximately 60 individuals will be served through June 30, 2027.

The Contractor provides Speech Therapy, services 6n-slte within New Hampshire
Hospital's acute psychiatric setting. The highly skilled services are provided as directed by the
medical staff and includes identifying, assessing, interpreting, and treating oral-pharyngeai
function disorders including, but not limited to, swallowing deficits and dietary changes and related
disorders such as speech, language, cognitive communication, voice, fluency and/or other related
disorders that limit patients' ability to communicate or affects the cllenfs health. The Contractor
wit! continue providing diagnoses, careglver education and developing client treatment plans
using current best practice techniques. In addition, the Contractor will continue to assess, select,
and develop augmentative and/or altemative communication systems, and provide training In their
use.

The Department will continue monitoring services through client evaluations, which
include:

•  Goals and/or outcomes of treatment:

•  Treatment technique(s);

•  Proposed frequency and duration of visits (as applicable);

•  Estimated potential for progress; and

•  Any initial/final recommendations (as applicable).

As referenced In Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising Its option to renew services for two
(2) years of the remaining two (2) years available.
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Should the Governor and Councii not authorize this request, patients at New Hampshire
Hospital may not be able to receive onsite medlcalty necessary speech therapy services, which
must l>e available to patients within a reasonable time period to address conditions that require a
clinically specific skilled assessment and intervention, such as silent aspiration and choking risk.

Area served: New Hampshire Hospital.

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

77ie Department of Health and Human Services' Minion is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and Independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Speech Therapy Services contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire.
Department of Health and -Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Granite VNA, Inc. ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Department of Health and Human
Services on June 9, 2021, and as amended and approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
January 18, 2023 (Item #22); the Contractoregreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.3, Contractor Name, to read:

Granite VNA, Inc.

2. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to,read:

June 30, 2027

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$29,998

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1., to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 65.33% Genera! funds.

1.2. 34.67% Other funds (Provider Fees and Intra-Agency Transfers).

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3., to read:

3. Payment shall be on an hourly basis at a rate of $125 per hour for actual hours worked in the
fulfillment of this Agreerhent.

r—OS

SS-2022-NHH-03-SPEEC-01-A02 Page 1 of 3
v7.12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
In full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2025, upon Governor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

1/2/2025

Date

—DocuSignad by:

-^OOeOOOIEpCMW,, : — -
Name:Ellen Mane Lapointe

Title, chief Executive officer

Granite VNA, Inc.

12/26/2024

Date

^~DocuSlgn*d by:

■a7»n5aA.AJ34

Namei^e epi an

Title: Presideht/CEO

Granite VNA, Inc.

SS-2022-NHH-03-SPEEC-01-A02
V. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been revie\wed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

^  OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY.GENERAL

DoeuSign^d by;

1/6/202 S . : '
IT ,7«07a<e<«0V*60... :
Date " Name: Robyn Cuanno

Title.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment vvas approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

(  '

Granite VNA, Inc. . A-S-1.3

SS.2022-NHH-03-SPEEC-01-A02 Page 3 of 3
V. 7.12.23
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scaalan, Secretaiy of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certiiy that GRANITE VNA, INC. is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact tnisiness in New Hampshire on October 18,1899.1 further certify that all

fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned. ' .

Business ID; 63116

Certificate Number; 0006675028

u.

O

%

€3

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my band and catise to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 23rd day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORI^^

I, M;cKr.e\ , hereby certify that:

1. I am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Granite VNA, Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken electronically of the Board of
Directors/shareholders, on December 19, 2024 at which a quorum of the.
Directors/shareholders voted.

)

VOTED: That Beth J. Slepian is duly authorized on behalf of Granite VNA, Inc. to enter into
contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or
departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and
other instruments,*and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto,-which may-in
his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been-amended or repealed and remains in
full force and effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which

this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from
the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that It Is understood that
the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the
person(s) listed above currently occupy the positlon(s) indicated and that they have
full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State
of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

DatedM:) iC\ 04 2 • ,

Michael Griffin ^
Board, of Trustee - Board Chair

Rev. 12/19/24
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ACORD.. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/Donrm)

12/19/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

US! Insurance Services LLC

3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300

Bedford, NH 03110

855 874-0123

Linda Jaeger, CIC

r«. Exn: 855 874-0123 |
ADDRESS: linda.Jaeger@usi.eom

INSURERtS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURER A National Union Fire Ins Co of Pitts, PA 19445
INSURED

Granite VNA, inc.

30 Pllisbury Street

Concord, NH 03301-797

INSURER a Granite State Healthcare & Human Svc WC NONAIC

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURERF

It

IN

C

E

Its IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
DICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
ERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
(CLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE
ADDL

IN5R
SUBR

WVP POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

(MM/OD/YYYYI
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GE NERAL LIABILITY

)E OCCUR

X X VHNUHG003353700 [)4/01/2024 04/01/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000

CLAIMS-LIAE $1,000,000

MED EXP (Any one person) $5,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000
GE VL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER;

POLICY 1 X[ JECT 1 1 LOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000

PRODUCTS ■ COMP/OP AGG $3,000,000

s

A AU1

X

OMOBILE LIABILITY VHNUHA003353900 04/01/2024 04/01/2025
1

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acddent) £1,000.000

ANY AUTO

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NONOWNED

AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per person) s

AUTOS ONLY '

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY X

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) s

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accidantl s

$

A

X

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

X X VHNUHX003354000 64/01/2024 04/01/202^ EACH OCCURRENCE $10,000,000

AGGREGATE $10,000,000

DEO X RETENTION $$0 s

B WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'UABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVEl 1
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N
(Mandatory In NH)
If doacrlbe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

P10344HCH2025

3A States; NH

01/01/2025 01/01/2026 Y PER OTH-
A STATirrF ER

E.L EACH ACCIDENT sl.000,000

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E-L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000
A Professionai

Liabliity '
VHNUHG003353700 04/01/2024 04/01/2025 $1,000,000 Ea. Incident

$3,000,000 Aggregate

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarlta Schadulo, may bo attacbod If moro apaco la roqulrod)
Additional insured Status is Provided Where Required by Contract, Agreement or Permit.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03) 1 of 1
#S47403219/M47388190

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

MLKZP
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sA. Grjinite
"❖"VNA

Office 603.224.4093
800.924,8620

info@granitevna.org

www.granitevna.org

30 Pillsbury Street
Concord, NH 03301

Offices in Laconia and Wolfeboro

Mission Statement

'f'Fe enhance cligniiy and independence for people by delivering quality health care and
promoting wellness in homes and communities through all stages oflife. "

Medicare Certified, NH Licensed, A subsidiary of Capital Region Heath Care



Docusign Envelope ID: 4EEF4BFB-2F81-4752-9882-59A76B29E75C

Z

Granite
"•rVNA

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

, September 30, 2023 and 2022

With Independent Auditor's Report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Trustees

Granite VNA, Inc.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Granite VNA, Inc., which comprise the
statements of financial position as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, and the related statements of
operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements. ^

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Granite VNA, Inc. as of September 30, 2023 and 20_22, and the results of its
operations and changes in its net assets, and Its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S.'GAAP).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Granite
VNA, Inc. and to meet our other, ethical responsibilities In accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements,,Granite VNA, Inc. adopted Financial Accounting
Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 842, Leases, in 2023. Qur opinion is not
modified with respect to that matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Granite VNA, Inc.'s ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to
be issued.

;Maine New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia *-Arizono ' Puerto Rico
•  • . • _ . s

berr^ydurih.cbm
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Board of Trustees

Granite VNA, Inc.
Page 2

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not absolute assurance
and, therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards will always detect a material misstaterhent when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they -yvouid influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess,the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Granite VNA, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Granite VNA, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
rnatters that we identified during the audit.

->

Manchester, New Hampshire •
January 9, 2024
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GRANITE VNA, INC.

Statements of Financial Position

September 30, 2023 and 2022 .

2023 2022

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,374,606 $ 2,398,472
Patient accounts receivable, net 8,745,556 10,652,489
Other receivables 375,697 312,802
Prepaid expenses 681,394 851,571
Employee retention tax credit receivable 6,254,341 .

Assets held for sale 674.000 -

Total current assets 21,105,594 14,215,334

Investments 24,730,024 30,148,510
Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts 1,577,284 1,524,162
Hospice house lease receivable 2,375,000 -

Property and equipment, net 5,292,567 5,720,642
Other assets 104.962 102.150

Total assets $ 55.185.431 $ 51.710.798

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $  420,979 $  459,829
Accrued payroll and related expenses 3,494,286 2.882.483

j Deferred revenue > 4,800 16.500
1 Refundable advance 464.948 766.557

' , Total current liabilities 4,385,013 4,125,369

Other liabilities 104.962 102.150

Total liabilities 4.489.975 4.227.519

Net assets

' Without donor restrictions 41,122,624 40,676,388
With donor restrictions 9.572.832 6.806.891

Total net assets 50.695.456 47.483.279

Total liabilities and net assets
t

•  ' 1 ' •

$ 55.185.431 $ 51.710.798

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
!

-3-
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GRANITE VNA, INC.

Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended September 30, 2023

Without Donor Restrictions

Operating
Internally
Designated Total

With Donor

Restrictions Total

Operating revenue
Net patient service revenue
Other revenue

Spending policy allotment
releases - donor restricted

Spending policy allotment - board
designated endowment

Net assets released from

restrictions for operations -
donor restricted

Net assets released from

restrictions for operations -
board designated

$ 35,884,540
2,782,678

48,982

625,404

234,500

9.389.000

$  - ;

122,880

(625,404)

(9.389.0001

$ 35,884,540
2,782,678

171,862

234,500

$  .

<

(171,862)

(234,500)

$ 35,884,540
2,782,678

Total operating revenue 48.965.104 (9.891.5241 39.073.580 (406.3621 38.667.218

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Purchased services

Supplies and other expenses
Depreciation

32,593,720
8,106,423
2,877,606

4,905,972

516.894

-

32,593,720
8,106,423
2,877,606

4,905,972

516.894

-

32,593,720
8,106,423

2,877,606
4;905,972
516.894

Total operating expenses 49.000.615 49.000.615 49.000.615

Operating loss f35.5111 (9.891.5241 (9.927.0351 (406.3621 (10.333:3971

Nonoperating revenue and
other support
Employee retention tax credit
Contributions

Contribution of nonfinancial asset

Investment income, net of fees
Change in fair value of beneficial

interest in perpetual trusts
Change in fair value of

investments, net of spending
policy allotment

6,254,341
791,294 -
674,000
82,836

35.818

422,595

2.112.387

6,254,341

791,294
674,000
505,431

2.148.205

2,500,000

107,470

•  53,122

511.711

6,254,341
3,291,294
674,000
612,901

53,122

2.659.916

Total nonoperating
revenue and other support 7.838.289 2.534.982 10.373.271 3.172 303 13.545.574

Change in net assets 7,002,778 (7,356,542) 446,236 2,765,941 3,212,177

Net assets, beginning of year 16.605.417 24.070.971 40.676.388 6.806.891 47.483.279

Net assets, end of year $ 24.408.195 ;$ 16.714.429 3I 41.122.624 $  9.572.832 $ 50.695.456

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-4-
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GRANITE VNA, INC.

Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended September 30, 2022

Without Donor Restrictions

Operating revenue
Net patient service revenue
Other revenue

Spending policy allotment
releases - donor restricted

Spending policy ailotment - board
designated endowment

Net assets released from

restrictions for operations -
donor restricted

Net assets released from

restrictions for operations -
board designated

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Purchased services

Supplies and other expenses
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating loss

Nonoperating revenue (losses) and
other support
Contributions

Investment income, net of fees
Change in fair vaiue of beneficial

interest in perpetual trusts
Change in fair value of

investments, net of spending
policy allotment

Total nonoperating
revenue (losses) and
other support

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Operatinq
Internally
Designated Total

With Donor

Restrictions Total

5 34,963,551 !
3,216,199

E $ 34,963,551
3,216.199

$ $ 34,963,551
3,216,199

48,982 122,880 171,862 (171,862)
-

655,692 (655,692)
- - -

42,488
- 42,468 (42,488)

6.457.557 f6.457.5571

45.384.469 f6.990.3691 38.394.100 f214.3501 38.179.750

28,894,723
7,933,834
3,453,324

4,830,024

557.273

-

28,894,723
7,933.834

3,453,324

4,830,024
557.273

- 28,894,723
7,933,834
3,453,324
4,830,024
557.273

45.669.178 45.669.178 45.669.178

f284.7091 'f6.990.3691 .f7.275.0781 (214.3501 (7.489.4281

741,070
74,478 578,289

741,070

652,767
189,624

100,687
930,694

753,454

-  /
- - (225,503) (225,503)

f158.7231 f5.320.7651 f5.479.4881 (990.0981 (6.469.5861

656.825 f4.742.4761 f4.085 6511 (925.2901 (5.010.9411

372,116 (11,732,845) (11,360,729) (1,139,640) (12,500,369)

16.233.301 . 35.803.816 52.037.117 7.946.531 59.983.648

16.605.417 $ 24.070.971 3i 40.676.388 3E  6.806.891 • 3B -47.483.279

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements.
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GRANITE VNA, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended September 30, 2023 and 2022

Cash flows from'operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash used by

operating activities
.  Depreciation s

Contribution of nonfinancial asset

Change In fair value of investments
Contribution of beneficial interest in perpetual trust
Change in fair value of beneficial interest in

perpetual trusts
Decrease (increase)'in the following assets

Patient accounts receivable

Other receivables

Prepaid expenses
Employee retention tax credit receivable
Hospice house lease receivable

Increase (decrease) in the following liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Deferred revenue

Medicare accelerated payments
Refundable advance

Net cash used by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property and equipment .
Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sale of investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

2023 2022

3.212,177 $(12,500,369)

516,894 557,273
(674,000) -•

(2,659,916) 6,469,586
• (189,624)

(53,122) 225,503

1,906,933 (3,411,924)
(62,895) (151,623)
170,177 (491,767)

(6,254,341) -

(2,375,000) -

(38,850) (57,693)
611,803 (77,486)
(11,700)^ (3,696)

- (3,864,006)
(301.6091 766.557

(6.013.449^ (12.729.2691

(88,819) -  (200,764)
(5,558,867) (16,918,804)
13.637.269 23.343.762

7.989.583 6.224.194

1,976,134 (6,505,075)

2.398.472 8.903.547

4.374.606 $ 2.398.472

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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GRANITE VNA, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

Granite VNA, Inc., (the Association) is a non-stock, non-profit corporation organized ,in New
'  Hampshire. The Association's primary purposes are to provide home health care, hospice, and
community health services to residents of Concord, New Hampshire and surrounding communities.

The Association is a subsidiary of Capital Region Health Care Corporation (CRHC), its sole
,  corporate member. CRHC is a holding company for various providers of health care.services to
residents in central New Hampshire, including Concord Hospital.

Recently Adopted Accounting Principle

The Financial Accounting Standards Board . (FASB) issued Accounting. Standards Codification
(ASC) Topic 842, Leases (Topic 842), to increase transparency and comparability among
organizations by recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities in the statemerit of finance position
and disclosing key information about leasing arrangements. Management evaluated the impact of
this guidance and determined the impact of the adoption of Topic 842 was not material to the
financial statements as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023.

Basis of Statement Presentation

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified as follows based on the
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 958, Not-
For-Profit Entities, as described below. Under FASB ASC Topic 958 and FASB ASC Topic 954,
Health Care Entities, all not-for-profit healthcare organizations are required to provide a statement
of financial position, statements of operations and changes in net assets, and a statement of cash
flows. FASB ASC Topic 958 requires reporting amounts for an organization's total assets,
liabilities, and net assets in a statement of financial, position; reporting 'the change in an
organization's net assets in statements of operations and changes in net assets; and reporting the
change in its cash and cash equivalents in a statement of cash flows.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Association. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Association's management
and the Board of Trustees (Board).

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Association or by the passage of time. Other'donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

-7-
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GRANITE VNA, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
• principles (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less, excluding investments.

The Association has cash deposits in a major financial institution which may exceed federal
depository insurance limits. The Association has not experienced any losses in such accounts.
Management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with respect to these accounts.

Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable is stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Management provides a reserve for payment adjustments based on its
assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are applied against the reserve for payment
adjustments. • '

Patient accounts receivable, net amounted to $8,745,556; $10,652,489; and $7,240,565 as of
September 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively.

Investments

The Association reports investments at fair value, and has elected to report all gains and losses in
net assets without donor restrictions unless otherwise stipulated by the donor or State law. All
gains and losses related to investments stipulated by the donor or State law are reported as
changes in net assets with donor restrictions in the statements of operations and changes in net
assets.

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall
market volatility. Consequently, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of investments
will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in
the statement of financial position.

Funds have been pooled for investment purposes. Income received, and realized and unrealized
gains and losses, are apportioned to the participating funds based on their respective units in the

^  pool, and then apportioned to the appropriate net asset categories according to donor restrictions
and State law. The units held by each fund are determined using fair value.
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GRANITE VNA, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Maintenance, repairs
and minor renewals are expensed as incurred and renewals and betterments are capitalized.

, Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Net Patient Service Revenue

Services to all patients are recorded as revenue when services are rendered at the estimated net
realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors and others, including estimated retroactive
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are
accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and in future periods
as final settlements are determined. Patients unable to pay full charge, who do not have other
third-party resources, are charged .a reduced amount based on the Association's published sliding
fee scale. Reductions in full charge are recognized when the service is rendered.

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the
Association. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on
actual services rendered. Generally, performance obligations satisfied over time relate to patients
receiving skilled and non-skilled services in their home or facility. The Association measures the
period over which the performance obligation is satisfied from admission to the point when it is no
longer required to provide services to that patient, which is generally at the time of discharge.

Providers of home health services to clients eligible for Medicare home health benefits are paid on
a prospective basis, with no retrospective settlement. The prospective payment.is based on the
scoring attributed to the acuity level of the client at a rate determined by federal guidelines. As the
performance obligations for home health services are met, revenue is recognized based upon the
portion of the transaction price allocated to the performance obligation. The transaction price is the
prospective payment determined for the medically necessary services.

Providers of hospice services to clients eligible for Medicare hospice benefits are paid on a per-
diem basis, with no retrospective settlement, provided the Association's aggregate annual
Medicare reimbursement is below a predetermined aggregate capitated rate. Revenue is
recognized as the services are performed based on the fixed rate amount. As the performance
obligations for hospice services are met, revenue is recognized based upon the portion of the
transaction price allocated to the performance obligation. The transaction price is the
predetermined aggregate capitated rate per day.

Because all of the Association's performance obligations relate to short-term periods of care, the
Association has elected to apply the optional exemption provided in FASB ASC Subtopic 606-10-
50-14 (a) and, therefore, is not required to disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price
allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of the
reporting period.

-9-
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GRANITE VNA, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

^  * I

Income Taxes

The Association is a tax-exempt entity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
'  (IRC). As a public charity, the Association is exempt from state and federal income taxes on

income earned in accordance with its tax-exempt purpose. Unrelated business income is subject to
state and federal income tax. Management has evaluated the Association's tax positions and
concluded that the Association has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that
require adjustment to the financial statements.

Contributions

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as support with donor
restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets.
When a donor restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets without
donor restrictions and reported in the statements of operations and changes in net assets as net
assets released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the

same year as received are reflected as contributions without donor restrictions in the
accompanying financial statements.

Change in Net Assets from Operations

The statements of operations and changes in net assets includes a measure of change in net
assets from operations. Changes in net assets which are excluded from the change in net assets
from operations include the employee retention tax credit revenue, contributions without and with
donor restrictions, investment income, net of fees, change in fair value of beneficial interest in
perpetual trusts, and the change in fair value of investments, net of spending policy allotment.

COVID-19 and Relief Funding

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the Coronavirus disease (COVID-19)
a global pandemic. In response to the global pandemic. The Centers for Medicare & Medicaid
Services (CMS) implemented certain relief measures and also issued guidance for limiting the
spread of COVID-19.

The U.S. government responded with several phases of relief legislation as a response to the
COVID-19 outbreak. Legislation was enacted into law on March 27, 2020, called the Coronavirus
Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), a statute to address the economic impact of
the COVID-19 outbreak. The CARES Act, among other things, 1) authorizes emergency loans to
distressed businesses by establishing, and providing funding for, forgivable bridge loans; 2)
provides additional funding for grants and technical assistance; 3) delays due dates for employer
payroll taxes and estimated tax payments for corporations; and 4) revises provisions of the IRC,
including those related to losses, charitable deductions, and business interest.

-10-
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GRANITE VNA, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and. 2022

CARES Act Provider Relief Stimulus Funds

The Association has received emergency federal grant funding under the CARES Act from the
Provider Relief Fund (FRF) which are funds to support healthcare providers in responding to the
COVID-19 outbreak.

The FRF was administered by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. These funds
were to be used for qualifying expenses and to cover lost revenue due to COVID-19. The FRF are
considered conditional contributions and were recognized as revenue when qualifying
expenditures or lost revenues have been incurred. The following table outlines the distributions
received, period of availability and revenue recognized during the years ended September 30,
2023 and 2022.

Funds Revenue Revenue

Distribution Available for Recognized Recognized
Distribution Period Amount Use Throuoh in 2023 in 2022

Period 4 (7/1/2021 to 12/31/2021) $ 1.705.658 12/31/2022 % ; $ 1.705.658

American Rescue Flan Act

On March 11, 2021, the U.S. government enacted the American Rescue Flan Act (ARFA). ARFA,
amongst other things, provided support for health and human services workforce development in
response to COVID-19 and broader economic impacts of the pandemic. The Association received
$144,517 and $895,185 in.grant funding under ARFA during the years ended September 30, 2023
and 2022, respectively, for the purpose of workforce investment. The Association has incurred
qualifying recruitment and retention expenses in the amount of $446,126 and $128,628 that was
recorded as other revenue in the statements of operations and changes in net assets for the years
ended September 30, 2023 and 2022. respectively. The remaining unspent ARFA funds of
$464,948 and $766,557 are reported as refundable advances on the statements of financial
position at September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Employee Retention Tax Credit

The CARES Act provides an employee retention tax credit (ERTC), which is a refundable tax credit
against certain employment taxes. For 2020, the tax credit is equal to 50% of qualified wages paid
to employees during the calendar year, capped at $10,000 of qualified wages per employee.
Additional relief provisions were passed by the U.S. government, which extended and expanded
the qualified wage caps on these credits through September 30, 2021. Based on these additional
provisions, the tax credit was increased to 70% of qualified wages paid to employees during each
quarter, and the limit on qualified wages per employee increased to $10,000 of qualified wages per
calendar quarter.
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GRANITE VNA, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements ^

September 30, 2023 and 2022.

Management determined that the Association qualified for the ERIC under the government orders
test and estimated that they \A/ill receive $6,254,341, v^rhich has been recorded as a receivable on"
the statement of financial position at September 30, 2023 and as revenue during the year ended
September 30, 2023. The credit is expected to be received during fiscal 2024. The credits received
could be subject to audit for up to five years irom,the date of the credit filing.

2. Availability and Liquidity of Financial Assets

The Association had \yorking capital of $16,720;581 as of September 30, 2023 and average days
(based on normal expenditures) of cash and cash equivalents and liquid investments on hand of
57 and 32 at September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

'A / • ■

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses and capital acquisitions costs not financed with debt or restricted funds, were
as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents, less donor restricted funds
Patient accounts receivable, net
'Other receivables

Employee retention tax credit receivable
Investments without donor restrictions or board designations
Estimated spending policy appropriation - donor restricted
Estimated spending policy appropriation - board designated

2023 2022

4,359,121 $ 2,382,987
8,745,556 10,652,489
375,697 312,802

6,254,341 -

2,410,537 810,300
172,000 172,000
625.000 625.000

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures
within one year $ 22.942.252 $ 14.955.578

The Board has designated a portion of its resources without donor-imposed restrictions to act as
endowment funds. These funds are invested for long-term appreciation and current income, but
remain available and may be spent at the discretion of the Board. The Association also has board
designated long-term investments that are intended to fund certain costs or projects that could be
made available for general expenditure upon Board approval. The Association has other assets
restricted to use, which are more fully described in Note 6, and which are not available for general
expenditure within the next year. These amounts are not reflected in the amounts above.

,The Association manages its cash and cash equivalents available to meet general expenditures
following two guiding principles:

• Operating within a prudent range of financial soundness and stability.

• Maintaining adequate liquid assets.
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GRANITE VNA, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and '2022

3. Investments

)  •

Investments by class of net assets and designation consist of the following:

' 2023 2022 '

Without donor restrictions and undesignated $ 2,410,537 $  810,300

Without donor restrictions - designated by Board
Functions as endowment 9,179,353 15,932,621
Hospice House 568,637 495,850

Hospice House replacement reserve 332,031 284,218
30 Pillsbury Street replacement reserve 384,651 331,250

Donahue Fund 45,157 40,442
Leadership Fund 25,990 23,260

Workforce development 5,578,610 6,363,330
Building capital improvements and maintenance 600,000 600,000

With donor restrictions

Temporary in nature 2,118,650 1,893,833

Perpetual in nature (income and appreciation of which
is expendable) 3.486.408 3.373.406

$ 24.730.024 $ 30.148.510

Investment income (loss) consisted of the following:

2023 2022

Interest and dividends, net of fees $ 612,901 $ 753,454
Change in fair value of investments 2.659.916 f6.469.5861

$ 3.272.817 f5.716.1321

Investment management fees were $141,045 for 2023 and $200,868 for 2022.
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GRANITE VNA, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

Endowment

The Association's endowment consists of individual funds established for a variety of purposes by
donors. As required by U.S. GAAP, net assets associated with endowment funds'are classified and
reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

r

Changes in endowment net assets for the years ended September 30 are as follows;

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions Total

Endowment net assets, September 30, 2021 $ 20.249.780 $ 3.968.737 $24,218,517

Investment losses

Investment income, net of fees

Net depreciation in fair value
.460,718

f3.623.8811

47,843
(471.3121

508,561
(4.095.193)

Total investment losses f3.163.1631 (423.469) (3:586.632)

Release to operations
Spending policy appropriations

(498,304)
f655.692) (171.862)

(498,304)
(827.554)

Endowment net assets, September 30, 2022 15.932.621 3.373.406 19.306.027

Investment return

Investment income, net of fees
Net appreciation in fair value

299,750

1.572.386

49,765

235.099

349,515

1.807.485

Total investment return 1.872.136 284.864 2.157.000

Release to operations
Spending policy appropriations

(8,000,000)
(625.4041 (171.862)

(8,000,000)
(797.266)

Endowment net assets, September 30, 2023 $  9.179.353 $ 3.486.408 $12,665,761
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GRANITE VNA, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

Return Objectives and Strategies Emoloved for Achievina Objectives

The prirhary objective of the investment funds is preserving the purchasing power of the assets.
The investment funds are managed based on relative performance, in .a manner that provides
diversification, liquidity and a dependable source of income. The goal is to attain a rate of return
equal to the Consumer Price Index plus 4%.

Funds with Deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value, of assets associated with donor-restricted endowment funds may
fall below the level that the donor or the State of New Hampshire Uniform Prudent Management of
Institutional Funds Act (the Act).requires the Association to retain as a fund of perpetual duration
("underwater"). The Board's policy does permit spending from underwater endowment. Any
deficiencies are reported in net assets with donor restrictions. At September 30, 2022, donor
endowment funds with a fair value of $3,373,406 were below the donor's original gift or stipulated
levels by $34,163. There were no such deficiencies at September 30, 2023.

Spending Policv

The Association has interpreted the Act as allowing the Board to appropriate for expenditure for the
uses and purposes for which the endowment fund is established, unless otherwise specified by the
donor, so much of the net appreciation, realized and unrealized, in the fair value of the assets of
the endowment fund over the historic dollar value of the fund as is prudent. In doing so, the Board
must consider the long and short-term needs of the Association in carrying out its purpose, its
present and anticipated financial requirements, expected total return on its investments', price level
trends, and general economic conditions. For the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, the
Board retained all appreciation over 7% of the original gift value on donor-restricted endowment
funds in net assets with donor restrictions, excluding three funds.

The Association developed an additional spending policy for funds donated to the Association
without donor restrictions and designated by the Board as endowment funds. The policy is a 3%
annual draw calculated on a three-year rolling market value historical average regardless of

.  deficiencies due to temporary market fluctuations. The funds are released monthly and transferred
^  from the investment account to the operating account to help support operations and continue to

meet the Association's mission.
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GRANITE VNA, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

4. Beneficial Interest in Perpetual Trusts

The Association is a beneficiary of the Benjamin and Gertrude Couch, George Griffin, Jeanne C.
and Walter W. Dwyer. Thelma A. Larson Trusts, Muriel Devens Bond Fund, Leo and Marguerite
LaFrance Fund, and Fernald-Gilrrian-Leavitt VNA Hospice Continuing Education Fund, the assets
of which are not in the possession of the Association. The Association has legally enforceable
rights and claims to such assets, including the right to income there from. Consistent with the
provisions of FASB ASC Subtopic 958-605 related to accounting for contributions received, these
funds are included in the Association's financial statements. The fair value of the trust assets is

reflected as an estimate of the present value of the future cash flows from the trusts and is
reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Appreciation in fair value of the trusts is not available
for expenditure by the Association unless the trustee decides to appropriate it. Total distributions
from these trusts were $85,170 in 2023 and $63,094 in 2022.

5. Property and Equipment

A summary of property and equipment as of September 30 follows;

2023 2022

Land $ 306,000 $ 306,000
Buildings and improvements 5,745,191 5,745,191
Leasehold improvements 1,160,818 1,160,818

Furniture and equipment " 2,376,088 2,287,269
Information system equipment 1.340.033 1.340.033

10,928,130 10,839,311
Less accumulated depreciation 5.635.563 5.118.669

Property and equipment, net $ 5.292.567 $^^720^6^
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GRANITE VNA, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

6. Net Assets

Net assets vyith donor restrictions were as follows at September 30:

2023 2022

Funds subject to time restriction
Hospice house lease $ 2.375.000 $

Funds maintained with donor restrictions temporary in nature:
Slusser Fund - scholarships 112,697 104,231
Audrey Lindgren Fund - financial assistance 1,365,221 1,314,862
Barstow Trust 2,131 2,131
Special Needs Bearded Men 13,046 13,046
Bishop Scholarship - nursing education 5,196 3,329
Ruby Raine Nydegger Fund - pediatric education 25,423 20,210
Penacook Village Fund - homemaker services for residents of
Penacook and Lower Boscawen 610,114 451,200

Hospice preparatory course and certification 312 312

2.134.140 1.909.321

Funds subject to the Association's spending policy and appropriation
Perpetual in nature, the income of which is expendable to
support:

General 1,136,359 1,136,359
Hospice House 823,377 823,377
Bishop Scholarship 20,543 20,543
Heston Hospice 463,242 463,242
Donahue Fund 32,199 32,199
Ruby Raine Nydegger Fund 32,282 32,282
Penacook Village Fund 899,567 899,567

Appreciation (deficit) of net assets with perpetual donor
restrictions 78.839 f34.1611

3.486.408 3.373.408

Funds maintained in perpetuity
Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts, income without restrictions 1.577.284 1.524.162

Total $ 9.572.832 $ 6.806.891

The Association entered into a 20-year building lease, expiring September 2042, for a cost of $1
per year with CRHC. The lease , is for the building that the Association utilizes for the hospice
house. Due to the lease payment being below fair market value the lease is considered a time
restricted receivable and net asset that will be released over the life of the lease.
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GRANITE VNA, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

7. Net Patient Service Revenue

A summary of net patient service revenue for the years ended September 30 is as follows:

Gross patient service revenue
Medicare

Medicaid

Private patient
Other third-party

Less contractual adjustments and charity care

Net patient service revenue /-

2023

$ 32,431,414
1,536,745

350,536
4.508.112

38,826,807
2.942.267

2022

$ 32,259,909
2,176,499

598,359
3.826.286

38,861,053

3.897.502

$ 35.884.540 $ 34.963.551

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government
review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties, and
exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs, The Association believes that it is in
substantial compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. However, there is at least a
reasonable possibility that recorded estimates could change a material amount in the near term.
Differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be
recoverable or payable are included in net patient service revenue in the year that such amounts
become known. ' ,

In assessing collectability, the Association has elected the portfolio approach. This portfolio
approach es being used as the Association has similar contracts with similar classes of patients.
The Association reasonably expects that the effect of applying a portfolio approach to a group of
contracts would not differ materially from considering each contract separately. Management's
judgment to group the contracts by portfolio is based on the payment behavior expected in each
portfolio category. As a result, management believes aggregating contracts {which are at the
patient level) by the particular payor or group of payors results in the recognition of revenue
approximating that which would result from applying the analysis at the individual patient level.

8. Charity Care

The Association has a policy of providing charity care to its. clients who are unable to pay. Eligible
clients are identified based on their financial information obtained and subsequent analysis. Since
the Association does not expect payment, estimated charges for charity care are not included in
revenue.

The arfiount of home care charges foregone for services furnished under the Association's charity
care policy was $120,700 and $89,300 for 2023 and 2022, respectively. Costs incurred for these
activities approximated $100,800 and $62,700 for 2023 and 2022, respectively. >
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GRANITE VNA, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

The Association also provided services in other health-related activities, primarily to indigent
patients, at rates substantially belo\w cost. Costs incurred for these activities, for services to
Medicaid patients, approximated $1,310,000 and $991,000 for 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The Association was able to provide the above charity care under sliding fee scale policies and in
activities without established rates or at rates substantially below cost through a combination of
local community support and state grants. Local community support consisted of contributions and
municipal appropriations.

In 2023 and 2022, approximately 1% of nongovernmental home health and hospice clients served
received services on a discounted basis.

9. Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Association generated approximately 87% and 89% of its net patient service revenues from
the New Hampshire Medicaid and federal Medicare programs in 2023 and 2022, respectively.
Under these programs, the provider is reimbursed for the care of the qualified clients at amounts
which may diffeir from its standard charges.

The Association grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables for patients and third-party
payors at September 30 were as follows:

2023 2022

Medicare 59 % 64 %

Medicaid, other third-party payors and patients 41 36

100 % 100 %

Due to the large concentration of clients who receive benefits from the Medicare reimbursement
program,' the Association is highly dependent upon regulatory authorities establishing
reimbursement rates that are adequate to sustain the Association's operations.

10. Malpractice Insurance

The Association carries malpractice insurance coverage under a claims-made policy through a
group risk sharing arrangement with CRHC. The policy is a claims-made policy that includes basic
liability, as well as excess liability coverage on varying levels. The cost of purchasing the coverage
is shared between the entities that have entered into the risk sharing agreement.
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GRANITE VNA, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

Shoyid the claims-made policy not be renewed or replaced with equivalent insurance, claims
based on occurrences during its term, but reported subsequently, would be uninsured. The
Association intends to renew its coverage on a claims-made basis and has no reason to believe
that it may be prevented from renewing such coverage. The Association is subject to complaints,
claims, and litigation due to potential claims which arise in the normal course of business. U.S.
GAAP requires the Association to accrue the ultimate cost of malpractice claims when the incident
that gives rise to the claim occurs, without consideration of insurance recoveries. Expected
recoveries are presented as a separate asset. The Association has evaluated its exposure to
losses arising from potential claims and determined that no such accrual is necessary for the years
ended September 30, 2023 and 2022.

11. Functional Expenses

The Association provides various services to residents within its geographic location. Expenses
related to providing these services are as follows;

2023 2022

Program services
Salaries and wages $ 25,973,185 $ 23,105,351
Employee benefits 6,459,822 , 6,344,205
Other operating expenses

Supplies 1.860,160 ■ ■ 2,056,313
Purchased services 1,128,869 1,180,789

,  Transportation 1,135,379^ 930,847
Other 297,975 143,625

Depreciation 49.299 • 295.242

Total program services 36.904.689 34.056.372

Administrative and general
Salaries and wages 6,620,535 5,789,372
Employee benefits 1,646,601 1,589,629
Other operating expenses

Supplies - 130,718 '
Purchased services 1,748,737 2,272,535
Transportation 55,948 ' 41,137
Other 1,556,510 1,527,384

Depreciation ■ 467.595 262.031

Total administrative and general 12.095.926 11.612.806

Total $ 49.000.615 $ 45.669.178

The Association allocates expenses between prograrh services and administrative and general
functions. Benefits are allocated based on a percentage of total salaries, and depreciation, rent,

.  and repairs and maintenance are allocated based on square footage. The remaining expenses are
allocated using a Medicare cost reporting methodology.
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GRANITE VNA, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
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September 30, 2023 and 2022

12. Retirement Plan

The Association sponsors a 401(k) profit sharing plan (Plan) that includes an Association match
covering employees who meet certain age and time requirements. Contributions to the Plan were
$1,287,738 for 2023 and $1,059,290 for 2022.

13. Deferred Compensation Plan

/  The Association had established a funded deferred compensation plan for the former
President/Chief Executive Officer (CEO). The plan was designed to defer a portion of annual
compensation and provide payments,'as determined by the plan, at disability, retirement, death,
separation from service, or for certain financial hardships. All amounts contributed and incorrie
earned under the funded plan are held in a trust, remain, until made available to the participant or
designated beneficiary, the sole property and rights of the Association, and are included in other
assets and other liabilities in the statements of financial position. The former President/CEO has

. elected distribution at a future time.

14. Related Party Transactions

The Association engages in activities with CRHC and its subsidiaries on a regular basis. Services
provided to affiliates by the Association include nursing services of $105,685 for 2023 and
$114,540 for 2022. Services purchased from affiliates by the Association include information
system support, telephone services, and supplies of $284,515 for 2023 and $245,456 for 2022.
The Association owed Concord Hospital $55,879 and $46,435 as of September 30, 2023 and
2022, respectively. These amounts are included in accounts payable In the statements of financial
position.

.15. Fair Value Measurement

FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair value as the exchange price that
would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most
advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
on the measurement date. FASB ASC Topic 820 also establishes a fair value hierarchy which
requires an entity to maximize the use of obsen/able inputs and minimize the use of unobservable
inputs when measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used
to measure fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable Inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.
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GRANITE VNA, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

The. following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Association's assets
measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of September 30:

2023

Investments

Cash and cash equivalents
Equities
Commodities

Corporate bonds and notes

Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts
Assets to fund deferred compensation

Total

Carrying
Amount Level 1

24,730,024
1,577,284
104.962

16,593,536

104.962

Level 2 Level 3

$  604,464 $ 604,464 $
15,519,297 15,519,297

469,775 469,775
8.136.488 .

•  $

8.136.488

8,136,488

1,577,284

$26.412.270 $16.698.498 $ 8.136.488 $ 1.577.284

2022

Investments

Cash and cash equivalents
Equities
Commodities

Corporate bonds and notes

Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts
Assets to fund deferred compensation

Total

Carrying
Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

$ 2,014,706 $ 2,014,706 $
18,074,539 18,074,539

474,748 474,748
9.584.517 :

30,148,510
1,524,162
102.150

20,563,993

102.150

9.584.517

9,584,517

1,524,162

$31.774.822 S20.666.143 $ 9.584.517 $ 1.524.162

Fair value of the investments is measured using quoted prices in active markets where available.
Fair value of Level 2 corporate bonds and notes is primarily based on quoted market prices of
comparable securities.

Fair value of the beneficial interest in perpetual trusts is measured based on quoted market prices
of the investments in the trusts, but is classified as Level 3 as there is no market in which to trade
the beneficial interest itself.
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GRANITE VNA, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

Changes in the fair value of assets classified as Level 3 are comprised of the following:

Balance, September 30, 2021 $ 1,560,040
Addition 189,624
Change in value (225.5021

Balance, September 30, 2022 1,524,162
Change in value 53.122

Balance, September 30, 2023 $ 1.577.284

16. Subsequent Events .

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements, management has considered
transactions or events occurring through January 9, 2024, the date which the financial statements
were available to be issued.
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BETH J. SLEPIAN, MBA, PT

Dynamic leader with strong communication and interpersonal skills. Experienced in all levels of home care and
hospice operations, including budgeting, strategic planning, and personnel management. Proven ability to ensure high
quality patient outcomes and patient satisfaction. Successful track record of leading complex organizational
improvement efforts and implementation of best practices. Demonstrated ability to work throughout a continuum of
care. Passionate about advocacy and legislative issues with relationships at state and national level.

Professional Experience

2015-Present President/Chief Executive Officer, Granite VNA (formerly Concord Regional
Visiting Nurse Association), Concord, NH
Responsible to the Board of Trustees for the strategic, operational, and development activities
of the agency's Home Care and Hospice Program, Hospice House and Community Health
Services.

2013-2015 Wee President, Education and Clinical Compliance, Concord Regional Visiting Nurse
Association, Concord, NH

1994-2013 Northeast Rehabilitation Health Network, Salem, NH
,  Administrator, NRH Home Care, 2011-2013

Clinical Director, NRH Home Care, 1995-2011
Physical Therapist, NRH Home Care, 1994-1995

1992-1994 ■ Director of Physical Therapy, New Hampshire Rehabilitation Hospital, Concord, NH

1987-1992 Northeast Rehabilitation Hospital, Salem, NH
Stroke Program Director, 1990-1992
Staff/Senior Staff Physical Therapist 1987-1990

Community/Committee Participation

•  National Alliance for Care at Home Merger Integration Board, Board of Directors (2024-Present)
o Governance Committee 2024rPresent

•  National Association for Home Care & Hospice - Board of Directors (2021 -Present)
o Merger committee for NAHC/NHPCO Merger 2023- present
o  Public Policy Committee (2022- Present)
o Advocacy Council (2020-Present)
o Medicare Advantage Subcommittee (2020-2021)
o  NAHC Mentor Program-Mentor (2022)

•  . Granite CEO Peer Group - Member (2026-Present)
•  CATCH Community Housing - Board of Directors (2019-Present)
•  VNA Health System of Northern New England (2017-Present)

o  President (2019-2021)
•  Home Care, Hospice & Palliative Care Alliance of New Hampshire - Board of Directors (2016-Present)

o  Board President (2022-2024)
o Chair of the Legislative Committee (2020-2022)

•  National Government Services Provider Outreach and Education Advisory Group for Home Health (2014-
•  Present)

•  Strategic Healthcare Programs Advisory Board (2020-2024)
•  Greater Concord Chamber of Commerce - Board of Directors (2018-2023)
•  Havenwood Heritage Heights, Concord, NH - Board of Directors (2017-2024)
•  Region 2 Lead for 1115 (a) Medicaid Waiver Demonstration. - Executive Committee Member (2017-2020)
•  Accountable Care Partners ACO, Management Committee, Quality Committee (2015-2019)
•  New Hampshire Cares ACO - Management Committee, Transformation of Care Committee (2020-2021)

Education .

•  Excellence in Governance Certificate Program, NH Center for Nonprofits/Saint Anselm College
- • Bachelor of Science, Physical Therapy, University of Vermont
•  Masters in Business Administration, Non-Profit Leadership, Nevy England College •

Awards

•  2024 Inducted into National Association of Home Care and Hospice Hall of Fame
•  2022 NH Business Excellence Award- Large Organization Healthcare
•  2018 Mary Ellen LaRoche Home Care Public Policy Award Recipient, Home Care Association of NH

Licensure Current New Hariipshire Physical Therapist #964
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September 2023 - Present

James E. Manahan II

Granite VNA, Inc.

Chief Financial Ofnccr

Primary oversight of the finance, accounting. UR and revenue cycle functions.

Responsible for all financial Business operations, to include development & implementation of financial policies,
accounting systems and internal controls.

Provide financial reports and analysis to monitor agency operations and programmatic results.
Oversight of all accounting information systems including payroll, accounts receivable, accounts payable, general
ledger and financial reporting systems.

Prepare and file periodic financial statements for internal users, BOD and regulatory agencies.

Coordinates the annual operating and capital budget development process.

Evaluate the financial impact of proposed contracts and service agreements.

Acts as the financial liason with the governing body, regulatory agencies and third-party entities.

Serves as a senior member of the agency's management team, assisting with the development of strategic planning,
program evaluation, operations, policies and procedures.

Finance & Operations Consultant April 2021 - August 2023
Coordinate and oversee the annual operating and capital budget building process.

Provide oversight of accounting, finance and revenue cycle staff to include l&R, accounts payable, payroll, and special
projects during a leadership transition. '
Oversee retirement plan administration and transition to a consolidated platform.

Coordinated the transition of insurance plan coverages within the UVMHN.
Conduct interviews and assist with orientation for new human resources and finance staff.

Catching up monthly financial & data reports and providing financial leadership/oversight.

Complete the federal & state provider Covid relief funds federal reporting requirements.

Compiled the financial data for submission and consideration of HRSA Phase 4 relief funds.

Interim-Sr. Vice President of Finance and Operations, Bogner of America, Inc. May 2022 - January 2023
Responsible for all wholesale, retail and e-commerce operations, logisiics, financial oversight and reporting for the
United States and Canada.

Oversee HR, IT, accounting, payroll, finance, compliance & warehousing through private-equity restructure.

February/March 2021

September 2010 - February 202!
AyP Finance, Alice Hyde Medical Center

VP for Finance & Administration, Home Health & Hospice

University of Vermont Health Network -
•  Lead financial & administrative ofTiccr and Assistant Treasurer of the Agency.

•  Lead, manage and account for the financial and administrative operations of the agency.

• . Coordinate and oversee annual budget development process, accounting, finance,.business analytics, revenue cycle to
include l&R, coding and auditing through accounts receivable/billing, accounts payable, payroll, facilities, and

•  information & leehnology departments, v

•  Primary liaison with the Treasurer of the HH&H BOD and primary staff for select board committees.

•  Assuring compliance with all applicable laws & regulations.

•  Primary finance & administrative lead on the affiliation with the UVM Health Network. ,

Key Accomplishments-
•  Successful planning and construction ofa state-of-the-art 21 bed inpatient hospice/respite facility, which replaced a 13

. bed facility that was subsequently sold.
•  Building more than 200 days ofcash on hand, through our revenue cycle analysis, which improved our revenue cycle

processing,efficiencies, with complete electronic billing to all payers.
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CFOA'Icc-Prcsidcnt Finance, VNA of the Treasure Coast September 2009 - September 2010
•  Project Management oversight for implementation of POC clinical & billing information system, including

telephony and AP/GL sub-systems.

•  Coordination of annual fiscal audit and filings for IRS Form 990 and CMS cost reports.

•  Presentation of monthly operating results to Finance Committee and Board of Directors and sub agency

boards.

. •. $30 million revenue agency over four sites, with Private Duty and inpatient Hospice House facility.
Key Accomplishments-

•  Successful implementation of Homecare Homebase Ppint-Of-Care EMR-system, with implementation &
integration of telephony and Blackbaud AP/GL system.

•  Interim leadership in the midst of a complete turnover of the Sr. leadership of the organization.

Chief Financial Officer, Franklin County Home Health Agency January 1995 - September 2009
•  Responsible for all financial operations and reporting, information systems, payroll, A/R & billing, facilities, audits and

presentation of operating results to Board of Directors; with former oversight of Human Resources.
•  Develop and present the annual operating and capital budgets to management team and board of directors.
•  Assist statewide Visiting Nurse Associations and stale agencies with program implementation issues.

•  Participate with state agencies and legislators in development and analysis of legislative initiatives.

Key Accomplishments -

•  Prepared agency to be among the first providers in Region I to successfully submit claims under Medicare's newly
implemented PPS system; within four days of transition date.

•  Designed and implemented inaugural IT network, with implementations & upgrades to Point-Of-Care EMR clinical,
billing and AP/GL applications.

EDUCATION: -

•  University of Vennont, Professional Certificate in Healthcare Leadership & Administration /

•  University of Vermont, Master of Business Administration/Forecasting concentration

•  Lyndon Stale College, B.S. Business Administration/Accounting concentration

•  Lyndon State College, A.S. Business Administration/Accounting concentration

ACTIVITIES/AWARDS:

Tre^urer, Homecare, Hospice & Palliative Care Alliance ofNew Hampshire
ChaTr, VAHHA/VNAs ofVT CFO Committee
President, Rotary Club of St, Albans, VT
Treasurer, St. Albans Rotary Club Home & Recreation Expo
Director, Northwestern Medical Center, Inc.

Vicc-President, NMC Physician-Hospital Organization
Chair, Barlow Street Community Center Task Force
Alderman, St. Albans City Council
Trustee, St. Albans Free Public Library
Who's Who Among Students in American Colleges and Universities •
Community Service Award, City of St. Albans, VT

US Lacrosse Collegiate Officials Council - District I & District 5
Canadian University Field Lacrosse Association Official

NCAA Collegiate Ice Hockey Official

National Ice Hockey Officials Association - Vermont Chapter
USA Level 4 Hockey Official
Secretary/Treasurer - Northern Vermont Youth Lacrosse .

President, Vermont Lacrosse Officials Association

Certified Officials Trainer - US Lacrosse

Vennont Lacrosse Officials Education Director

Vermont Evaluation Program Coordinator - USA Hockey Officiating Program
Level I Certified Lifeguard
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PERSONAL INTERESTS:

Pholography, Hunting, Alpine Skiing, Kayaking, Mountain Biking, Golf, Hiking, American Revolution History, Norman
Rockwell
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ELIZABETH ""UZ" SIROIS

EDUCATION

August 2016 Western Kentucky University, Bowling Green, KY
Master of Science, Speech Language Pathology

August 2014 Utah State University, Logan, UT
Bachelor of Arts, Communication Sciences and Disorders

August 2013 Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH

Bachelor of Arts, Psychology

CLINICAL EXPERIENCE

Encompass Health Rehabilltatlon Hospital

Concord, NH

Speech Language Pathologist (April 2018 - Present)

Description: Inpatient rehabilitation hospital

Responsibilities: Administered formal and informal assessments, provided therapy in an acute rehabilitation
setting for adults with swallowing, cognitive, communication and voice disorders. Stroke Committee
representative for Speech department.

Northeast Rehabilitation Hospital
Nashua, NH

Speech Language Pathologist (April 2018 - December 2018)

Description: Inpatient rehabilitation hospital

Responsibilities: Administered formal and informal assessments, provided therapy in an acute rehabilitation
setting for adults with swallowing, cognitive, communication and voice disorders.

Pleasant View Center, Genesis Rehabilitation Services

Concord, NH

Speech Language Pathologist (February 2017 - April 2018)

Description: Skilled nursing facility with short term rehabilitation and long term care

Responsibilities: Assessed and treated speech, language, cognitive, voice and swallowing disorders in a
skilled nursing facility. Incorporated low tech and high tech AAC into therapy for patients with complex
communication disorders.
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Elizabeth Sirots Page 2

Goldenview Health Care Center

Meredith, NH

Speech Language Pathologist (July 2016 - February 2017)

Description: Skilled nursing facility with short term rehabilitation, assisted living and long term care

Responsihilitips; Assessed and treated speech, language, cognitive and swallowing disorders in a skilled
nursing facility and retirement living community.

OTHER PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Cellular Specialties, Inc. (March 2002 - August 2014)
Manchester, NH

Description: Manufacturer of wireless telecommunications products

Product Manager

Responsibilities: Managed lifecycle of assigned product lines from concept phase through product retirement

Account Manager
j  . ' '

Responsibilities: Managed customer sep^^ice department with focus on customer satisfaction, on-time
delivery, and just-in-time manufacturing processes. Developed business analysis reporting for Sales
department.

Project Manager

Responsibilities: Coordinated with vendors, contractors and customers for in-building wireless project
■implementation. i .

CERTIFIGATIONS

New Hampshire Speech Language Pathology License
ASHA Certificate of Clinical Competence •
LSVT LOUD Certified Clinician
Interactive Metronome Certified Clinician

Ampcare Certified Clinician
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Granite VNA, Inc.

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Beth Slepian President & CEO $0.00 $398,777.08

James Manahan CFO '$0.00 $244,800.14

Liz Sirois '
Speech and Language
Pathologist

$2,471.00 $82,348.00
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Levi A. Weartr;
iMcrta C«B)mls»lMKr

-COcB M. Ltpefite
Cbkf Ciecdtiv* orom

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALtH AND HUMAN SERVICES

NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPiTAL

36 CUKfON STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603^27i.6M I.S004S^334SEit.S300

Pix: 603'27l<6395 TDO Accui: l-S00-'nS-2964 www^hhsjih^ov

Jonuary 3. 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council .

Stiate House
Concord, New'Hampshire 03301 .

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize tiw Department of Health and Hurnan ̂ rvices, New Hampshire Hospital, to enter
into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Granite VNA d/b/a Concord Regional
Visiting Nurse Assodation, Inc (VC # 174069). Concord, NH, for speech therapy services at New
Hampshire Hbspita), by irtcreasirig the . price limitation by $10,000 from $9,9^ to $19,998, and
by exercising a renewal option to extend the completion dke from June 2023 to Jur^ 30,'
.2025, effective July 1, 2W3, upon Gpvembr and Coundl approi^. 40% General Funds. 60%
OthtBf Funds (Proyider PcDs. and Intra-agency Transfers). ^

The original contract was approved by the Department of-Heatth and Human Services on
Junes. 2021;

Funds are aiitidpated to be available In the followtng account for State Fiscal Years 2024
' and 2025, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds In the future operating txidget,
with the authority to adjust budget line items wHhin the prtra llniitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed justified
06-95-94-940010^7500000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH
.ANDHUMAN SVS, HHS: NEVV HAMPSHIRE HOSPrTAL; ACUTE PSYCHIATRIC SERVICES

State

Fiscal
Year

Clasa / 1
Account

Class Title
Job

Nuinber

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 101/500729 Contracts For

Program Svc
94057300 $4,999 $0 94,999

2023 101/500729 Contracts For

Prograih Svc
94057300 $4,999 $0 $4,999

2024 101/500729 ContracteFor
Program.Svc

94057300 $0 $5,000 $5,000

2025 101/500729 Contracts For

Prograrn Svc
94057300 $0- $5,000 $5,000

.

Total $9,998 $10,000 $19,998

TYm DtparUntn t o/iltalih md Human Stmca'MiMiion U to join eommunitiot oiui /amiUa
.'in p/widiad opporluAUiet for cUixtn$ to ochievt Aeo/tA and indtprndenct.
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His Excellency. Governor Chjistophor T. Sununu
' end the Horwrablo Coundl
Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because this contract amendrnent puts the cumulative value of
at! of the agency's contracts wrth this Contractor above the applicable threshold delineated in MOP
150; therefore G&C approval of this contract Is required. Due to the highly personalized nature of the
sen/ices, and the vulnerable, acute psychiatric population who receive the services, the Department
is requesting to enter into a Sole Source contract amendment to ensure there is no interruption to
the on-site continuity of care for patients at New Hampshire Hospital. The Granite State Visiting
Nurses Association. Inc. provides skilled Speech Language Pathology senrlces on-site wrilhin New
Hampshire Hospital's acute psychiatric setting. The alternative of transporting acutely mentally 11)
and sometimes unpredictable patients off-site for outpatient speech sen/ices Is far less safe, and
more costly to the Department.

The purpose of this request is to allow the Contractor to continue providing Speech Therapy
Services to clients at New Hampshire Hospital who require interventions that Include specialized
trainlrig. equipment, or techniques. The services will be provided as directed by the medical staff at
New Hampshire Hospital and wilt include identifying, assessing and Inteipreiing oral-pharyngeal
function disorders and related disorders such as speech, language, cognitive communication, voice,
fluency and/or other related disorders that limit clients' ability to communicate or affects the client's
health.

Approximately 60 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2026.

The Contractor will evaluate clients, identify, assess and interpret disorders of clients" oraL
pharyngeal function and speech, language, cognitive-communication, voice, fluency, or other related
disorders. The Contractor will provides diagnoses, and develop dient treatment plans using current
best practice techniques. In addition, the Contractor will assess, select and develop augmentative
and/or altemative communication systems, and provide training In their use.

The Department will monitor services by reviewing dient evaluations that include:

• Goals and/or outcomes of treatment;

• Treatment technique(8):

•  Proposed frequency and duration of visits (as applicable);

•  Estimated potential for progress; and

• Any initial/final recommendations (as applicable).

As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Coundl approval. The Department is exorcising Its option to renew sen/ices for two
(2) of the four (4) years available.

Should the Governor and Coundl not authorize this r^uest, patients at New Hampshire
Hospital may not be able to receive medically necessary speech therapy services, putting their health
and safety at potentially high risk. Speech therapy must be available to dients within a reasonable
time period to address conditions that require a dinically specific skilled assessment and
intervention, such as silent aspiration and choking risk, which could cause death if not addressed In
a timely manner.
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His Excenency. Oovemor CMstopher T. Sununu
end thd Honorable Councfl
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Area served: New Hampshire Hospital.

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds will
not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lorl A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Speech Therapy Services contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Sen/Ices {"State" or "Department") and Granite VNA d/b/a Concord
Regional Visiting Nurse Association. Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Department of Health and Human
Services on June 9. 2021, the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon, the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Agreement Provisions. Section 1. Revisions to Form P-37. General Provisions. Subsection 1.2,
the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and
Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these senrices; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as foltows: '•

1. Form P-i37 General Provisions, EMock 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2025. '

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$19,998.

3. Form P-37. General Provistons, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore. Director.

Granite VNA d/t)/d Concord Region^ Visiting Nurse
AssodaUon. Inc . A-S-l.3 Controctor initials

SS-2022.NHH-03-SPEEC-01-A01 Page 1 of 3 Dale
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AH terms artd conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective July 1. 2023, upon Governor and Council approval;

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

12/28/2022

Date

—DocuSJQMtf by:

Marie Lapointe .

Title: chief Executive officer

Granite VNA d/b/a Concord Regional Visiting Nurse
Association, Inc.

12/22/2022

Date

-D9ca$igMtf by;

2Aafe2(b..Slepian

Title: president/CEO

Gfanite VNA d/bra Conoord Regtonai Visiting Nurse
Assodallon, Inc. . A-&-1.2 .

SS-2022-NHH-03-SPEEC-01-A01 Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having tieen reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
.execution.

OFFICE OF THE AHORNEY GENERAL

1/3/2023 , I
Date LjitefeeuiBwby" cuarino

Title: Attorney

I hereby .certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Stale of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ' (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

GranilD VNA d/b/a Concord Regional Visiting Nurse
Assodalion, Inc. A-S-1.2

SS.2022.NHH^3-SPEEC-01-A01 F^3of3
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FORM NUMBER P>37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subjcce:;_Speech Therapy Services (SS-2022-NHH-03-SPEEC-01)

Notice: This agreement and a! I of its auachmcnis shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in witing prior to signing the contract.

ACRCEMGNT

The Stale of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

general provisions

I.l Slate Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 Siote Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Granite VNA d/b/a Concord Regional Visiting Nurse
Association, Inc.

1.4 Conira'cior.Addrcs.s

30 Pillsbury Street, Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone
Number

(603)224-4093

1.6 Account Number

05-95-94-940010-8750-

101-500729

1.7 Completion Dale

.June.30.,2023

, 1.8 Price Limitation

$9,998

! .9 Contracting Officer for Slate Agency

Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 Stajc Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

I.M Contractor Signature
^ ■■■ Docv8lpn»«l try".

SUr^ Date:6/7/2021

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Beth slepian 'r

President/CEO

Signature
&oe»$ br

-• Dme:€/7/2021

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Heather m. Moquin

Chief Executive Officer, New Hampshire Hospital

1.15 ApprONoTbylhcN.H. Department of Adminisiroiion, Division ofPcrsonnel (i/n/jp/fcrrWc)

•  Dirccor.On; 6/9/20n
1.16 Approva^^y1iic"j43fitec^4WW0Wlt(FoahrBaSfl(bicctt (ifapplicable)

).17 AppIW^f^5^W8^tft'crnor and Executive Council

G&C Item number: Applicable G&C Meeting Date: Not Applicable

Page 1 of4
(Contractor Initial

Date
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Slate of New
Hampshire, acting through ihe agency identified.in block 1.1
("Slate"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to pcrfonh, and the Contractor shall pcrfonn, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more panicularly
described irt the attached EXHIBfr B which is incorporated
herein by reference (•'Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and E.xecuii\'C
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block i.l7,
unless no such approval Is required, in which cose the Agreement
shall become efTcctivc on the date the Agreement is signed by
.(he Stale Agertcy as shown in block 1.13 ("Effeclivc Dale").
3.2 If the .Contractor commences the Sefvices prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Conimctor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement- to the
contrary, all obligations of Ihe State hcrcundcr, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hcrcundcr, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
fund.s affected by atiy stale, or federal lcgi.slativc or executive
action thai reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or In
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
Stale shall have the right to withhold payment until such fund.s
become available; if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
icrminaie the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in (he
event funds in (hat Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, andiermscf payment
ere identified and more panicularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Stale of the contract price shall be (he
only and thc complcic reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature Incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The Stale reserves the right to offset from any anx>unts
otherwise payable lo lhc Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, arid notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hcrcundcr, exceed the Price Limitation set forth In block li8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, (he
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and.equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any pan by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, rcguiaiions
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guideline.^ as (he
Slate or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws. ,
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take afTirmaiive action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Conirncior agrees to permit the Stale or United States
access to any of Ihe Ccntracior's books, records ond occounls for
the purpose of ascenaining compliatKe with a!) rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed ond
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in xvritlng, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months afler the
Completion Dale in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or.
corporation with whom it is engaged in a cotnbincd efTort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or ofncial, who is malerially involx'cd in the-procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive lerminaiion of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contrttcting OfRcer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting OfTiccr's decision shall be final for Ihe State.

Page 2 of 4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of ihc following acis or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hcrcunder ("Event

of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any rq}ort required hcreunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agrccn>ent.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State tnay
take any one. or more, or all, of the.following actions:
5.2.1 give the Contractor a written rtotice specifying (he Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of (he notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
tcrmirtatc ihi.s Agreement, effective two (2) days aficr giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Comraclor a written notice .specifying the Ev'cnt of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering thai the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue lb the Contractor during (he
period from the date of such notice until such time as (he State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Coniracior;
8.2.3 givc lhc Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe 10 the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor n written noticespecifying the Event of
Default, treat (he Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof aflcr
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of Its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to Enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
nil of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 NotwiihstatKling paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in pan, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the Stale is exercising its option to lerminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agrccmcnl for
any reason other than (he completion of the Services, (he
Contractor shall, at -the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days aficr the date
of termination, a-report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail alt Services paformcd, and the coniraci price earned, to
and including the dale of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of topics of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in.ihe attached
EXHlDll* D. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

Page 3

submit lb the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFlDENTIALmV

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.
10.2 Ail data and any property which has been received from
the State or purcha.<tcd with funds provided for that puipose

under this Agreement, shall be the property of (he State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidcmiality of data shall be governed byN.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior wTltten approval of (he State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor Is lit all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Slate or receive nny benefits, >vorkc.rs' compensation or
other emoluments provided by (he State to its employees.

12. assicnment/delegation/subcontracts.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest iii this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be prowded to the Stale at least fifteen (15) days prior to
(he assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Conirol shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" nteans (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its afTiliatcs, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifiy percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substaniially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be .subcontracted by (he
Ccniroctor without prior written notice and consent of Ihc Stale.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontmcts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subconiraci or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. indemnification. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and alt claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other clairhs asserted against
the Stale, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omission of the
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Conlracior, or subcomrBClors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The Static shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by Ihe Contractor arising under
this paragraph 1 Notwith^anding (he foregoing, nothing herein
coixtained shall be deemed to constitute avvaiver of the sovereign
immunity of the Stale, which tmmuhiiy Is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at Its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain m force, the
following insurance:
14.1.) commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than Si,000,000 per occurrence and S2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all propeny
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
S0% of the whole replacement value of the propeny.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the Slate
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Depanment of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Conifacior shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ceniricaie(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting OfTicer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certif1cate<s} of insurance
for all rcnc\va!(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The cenifibatefs) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and arc incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

I S.l By sighing this agreemeni, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that (he Contractor is in compliance with or e.xempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("ft'orkers'
Conipcnsoiion ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compcnsalipn In connection with
acliviiies vvliich the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall fumish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proofof Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281'A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or cmplpycc of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with (he
performance of the Services under this Agrccmcni.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to Ihe other party
shall be deemed to have been duly deiiNtred or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United Slates
Post Office addressed to (he parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by art instrument in writing signed by the
panics hereto and only aficr approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, inierpreied and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and as.sign5. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no lule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any parly.
Any actions arising out of (his Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
c.\cluslve jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or auachmcnis and amendment (hereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The panics hereto do not intend to
benefit any third panics and this Agreemeni shall not be
construed to confer any .such bcncfil.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout (he Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to e.xplain, modify, amplify or aid In the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agrccmcni.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set fonh in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by fcrcrencc.

23. SEVERADILITV. Intheevcnianyoftheprovision.<:orihis
Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal taw, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and crfccl.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreemeni and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.

Page 4 of 4
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■ New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Speech Therapy Services

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisionsto Form P-37, General Provisions
N

1.1. Paragraph 3. Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to appropriate State approval, this Agreement, and all obligations
of the parties hereunder, shall become effective on July 1, 2021
("Effective Date").

1.2. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3;3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to four (4) additional year(s)
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
sen/ices, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12, .Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracls, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor

^compliante with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements Nvith all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how ̂corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement ̂and notify

.  the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

. SS-2022^HH-03.SPEEC-01 GraniloVNA J
^  Concord Regional Visiling Nurae Assodetion, Inc. Conlraclor (nitiala
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'  New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Speech Therapy Services •

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1 .The Contractor shall provide Speech Therapy Services to individuals who require
Interventions.that include specialized training, equipment and/or techniques, as
directed by the New Hampshire Hospital (NHH) Medical Staff.

1.2. For the purposes of this agreement, all refererices to days shall mean calendar
.  ■ days. . - ; ■ . ■

.  1.3.The Contractor shall;

1.3.1.Provide Speech Therapy Services on-site at the New Hampshire Hospital
Acute Psychiatric Facility located at 36 Clinton Street. Concord, NH. The
Contractor shall ensure these services are provided by a New Hampshire
licensed speech language palhologtst(s). The Contractor will provide New
Hampshire Hospital with a copy of said llcense(s) Nvilhln five (5) days of the
effective date of the Agreement or the date of any newly issued license.

1.3.2. Evaluate patients within seven (7) days of receiving orders from the
prescribing NHH Medical Staff, for up to thirty (30) days of treatment as
prescribed.

1.3.3. Identify, assess and Interpret disorders of clients' oral-pharyngeal function
and related disorders, speech, language, cognillve-communlcation, vdlce,
fluency and/or otrier related disorders that limit clients* ability to communicate
and/or affects clients'health.

1.3.4.Diagnose clients' oral-pharyngeal, speech, language or cognitive
communication disorder. r

1.3.5.Develop Client Treatment Plans using current best practice techniques to
prevent negative sequelae or rehabilitate/treat clients', oral-pharyngeal or
speech disorder.

1.3.6. Assess, select and develop augmentative and/or alternative communlcalion
systems and provide training in their use.

1.4.The Contractor shall submit a handwritteri and dated Client Evaluation within
twenty-four (24) hours of the end of the Initial session by placing the evaluation in
the unit secretary's file box or other designated location. The Contractor shall
ensure the Client Evaluation Includes, but Is not limited to:

1.4.1 .Goals/and or outcomes of treatment;

1.4.2.Treatmenltechnique(s);
SS.2022-NHH-03-SPEEC-01 Granite VNA d/We
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1.4.3.Proposed frequency and duration of visits (as applicable);

1.4.4.Estimated pptenllal for progress; and

1.4.5.Any initial/final recommendations (as applicable).

1.5.The Contractor shall submit a handwritten and dated Speech Therapy Progress
Note immediately at the end of client session by placing the Progress Note in the
unit secretary's file box or other designated location.

1.6.The Contractor shall maintain NHH client records that Include, at a minimum:

1.6.1.Client name;

1.6.2.Medicai record number;

1.6.3.Dale of service:

1.6.'4.Tjme and duration of therapy: '

1.6.5. Description of treatment; and

1.6.6. Client progress.

1 ./.The Contractor shall submit a handvwitten and dated Speech Therapy Progress
Note a! the conclusion of a client's treatment, or by the end of the thirty (30) day
treatment order period, to:

1.7.1.Recommend discharge plans and collaborate with NHH Medical Staff on
implementation of each plan; or

y

1.7.2.Request a re-certiflcation order after thirty (30) days from the beginning of
the prior order for additional treatment to modify or continue Therapy
Services to achieve the anticipated goals and outcomes. The recertificalion
order must be approved by Department Medical Staff prior to continuing
treatment with the. client.

I.B.The Contractor shall request a re-evaluation order for therapy to continue after
ninety (90) d?iys from the initiation of client treatment (initial thirty (30) day order
period plus two re-certifications). The Contractor shall ensure:

1.8.1 .A re-evaluation Is completed In order for therapy to continue.

1.8.2.Re-evaluations include, but are not limited to:

1.8.2.1. Goals and outcomes;

1.8.2.2. Proposed treatment technique(s);

1.6.2.3. Likely duration of visit(s);
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1.8.2.4. The potential for progress;

1.8.2.5. Recommended number of visits per week; and

1.6.2.6. Recommended number of weeks for treatment.

1.9.The Contractor shall provide veriricalion of immunization immediately upon
request by the Department, as needed for on-site business, In accordance with
the Centers for Disease Prevention and Control recommendations for

immunization of Health-Care Workers; Recprnmendatlons of the Advisory
Committee on Immunization Practices: and the Hospital Infection Control

Practices Advisory committee, Including: ^

1.9.1.Tuberculosis screening results-dated within the last year prior to beginning
of'lhe Agreement:

1.9.2. Hepatitis B vaccination or immunity initiation;

1.9.3. Immunity to measles, mumps, rubella and chickenpox;

1.9.4. Influenza vaccination during influenza season if not contraindicated; and

1.9.5.fetanus. Diphtheria, & Pertussis (TDaP) vaccination within the past ten (10)
years.

1.9.6.COVID-19 vaccination,

1.10. The Contractor's assigned Speech Therapist{s) shall participate in all or a
portion of the Hospital Orientation training series designed to ensure the safety
and confidentialily of patients and Contractor, as required by NHH. Trainings
nnay include, but are.not limited to:

1.10.1. fire Safety;

1.10.2. Boundaries;

1.10.3. Cultural Awareness;

1.10.4. Cues to Crisis:

1.10.5. Rehabilitation Orientation: and

1.10.6. Infection Control.

1.11. At the discretion of the Hospital Director or deslgnee, and based on the
Contractor's credentials and experience, the trainings in Subsection 1.10 above
may be covered individually with the Contractor In a condensed formal.

—05
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1.12. The Contractor shall obtain, at the Contractor's expense, a Criminal Background
Check for each assigned Speech Therapist and shall release the results to the
NHH Office of Human Resources to ensure no convictions for the following:

1.12.1. A felony for child abuse or neglect. spousal abuse, any crime against
children or adults, including but not limited to: child pornography, rape,
sexual assault, or homicide;

1.12.2. A violent or sexually-related crime against a child or adult, or a crime
which rnay indicate a person might be reasonably expected to pose a
threat to a child or adult; and

1.12.3. A felony for physical assault, battery, or a drug-related offense committed
within the past five (5) years in accordance with 42 (JSC 671
(a)(20)(A)(ii).

1.13. The Contractor shall authorize the Department to conduct a Bureau of Elderly
and Adults Services (BEAS) State Registry check and a Division for Children
Youth and Families (DCYF) Central Registry check, at no cost to the Contractor,
for each assigned Speech Therapist.

1.13.1. The BEAS Slate Registry check and DCYF Central Registry check
confidential results are returned directly to the NHH Office of Human
'Resources.

1.14. The Contractor shall hot commence services prior to receipt and verification of
the required documentation in 1.12 and 1.13 by the NHH Office of Human
Resources. In the event that the Contractor's assigned Speech Therapist(s)
have a change in status or are convicted of a crime, a new criminat background
check will be provided to NHH, at the Contractor's expense, for determination
by NHH Human Resources Office.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information In compliance
with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information
(Privacy Rule)(45CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached
Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K. which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.
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3. Performance Measures

3.T. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

3.2. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service
data.

3.3. yvhere applicable, the Contractor shall -collecl and share data with the
Department in a format specified by the Department.

4. Additional Terms

4.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

4.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreerhent so as to achieve
compliance therewith,

4.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

4.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who.
have speech challenges.

4.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

4.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Conlract-wlth the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

4.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

4.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership, for^ any^d all
SS-2022-NHH-03-SPEEC-01 CfBnile VNA d/b/« 5^
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s  original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

4.3.3.1. Brochures.

4.3.3.2. Resource directories.

4.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

4.3.3.4. Posters.

4.3.3.6. Reports. ■ . ,

, 4.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

5. Records

5.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

5.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

5.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance- with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,

•  requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

5.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of ■

services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

5.1.4. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

5.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the
Agreement are to be performed after the end of the terni of this Agreement
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and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department
shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.
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Pavment Terms

1. . This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 36% General funds.

1.2. 64% Other funds (Provider fees).

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Contractor. In
accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Department has identified this Agreement as NON-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. Payment shall be on an hourly basis at rate of $105 per hour for actual hours
worked in the fulfillment of this Agreement.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice In a form satisfactory to the Department
by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior rnonth.
The Contractor shall include, at a minimum on the invoice, the client's name,
medical record number, date(s) of service, number of hours worked per client,
and total hours for the billing period. The Contractor shall ensure the Invoice is
completed, dated and returned to the Department in order to initiate payment.

5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to NHHFinanclalServices@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

MM Hospital Accounts Payable
121 South Fruit Street

Concord. NH 03301

6. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and
if sufficient, funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General
Provisions Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

7. The final invoice shall be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days
after the contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

8. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B. Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein,-the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the.event
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of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed In accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

11. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Forrh P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between Slate Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without-
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.,

12. Audits

12.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to

melissa .s.mQrintSjdhhs.nh.qov if any of the following conditions exist:

12.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipienl pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently complete fiscal year.

12.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll--b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1.000,000 or more.

12.1.-3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

12.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an-independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
yearl^ conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform-Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

"  12.3. If Condition B .or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

12.4. In addition to. and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, It is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.
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.  CERTIFICATION REGARDiNG DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's represenlalh/e. as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certincation:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAI^ INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D;41 U.S.C. 701 et 6eq.)?^he January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Pert II of Ihe May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certiflcallon by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub- .
contractors), prior to-award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee'(ahd by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year In lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set cut below is a
maleria! representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when Ihe agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to: ,

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibitiori;

•1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform empbyees about
1 ;2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any dvailable drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon empbyees for drug abuse violations

occurring in U^e workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
" 1.4. Notifying the employee In the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a violalbn of a criminal drug

statute occurring In Ihe workplace no later than five calendar days after such
convblion;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to eve^ grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federaj^agency

■ds
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has designated s central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(5) of each affected grant;

.  1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who Is so convicted
1.6.'1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, Slate, or local health,
law enforcemorit, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
Iniplementation of paragraphs 1.1. 1.2.1.3.1.4.1.5, arxJ 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the 8ite(&) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not Identified here.

Vendor Name:

• DocwSlgnM br*.C-oecwiignM »)r:
Date Name!'^'^^'^

Title: president/CEO

OS

Exhibll D - Cenincaiion regarding Dnig Free Vendor IntUals
WoflcplaceReQulremerua 6/7/2021

CUADMH8/11071J PegeZofZ Date



Docusign Envelope ID: 4EEF4BFB-2Fei-4752-9882-59A76B29E75C )'

OocuSIgn Envelope 10: S9940CE1-7232-4B7F-B51&-6AA9AD66C05D

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING .

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply wllh the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and ■
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
• *Temporary Assistance to Ne^y Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block .Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:'

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for Infiuencirig or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendmenl. or
modification of any Federal contract, grarit, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention

,  sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
Influencing or altempling to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress.

'• an pfficer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mentior> sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, In accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E'A.)

3. The undersigned shaD require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all.tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,.
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fad upon which reliance was placed when this transaction,
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penally of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure. ^ •

Vendor Name: .

y  DecK&lontd by: .

6/7/2021

Date

Title:
President/CEO

ps
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility r^atters. and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera! Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is providing the

■ certification set out below..

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation In this covered transaction.' If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why It cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be ,
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary

,  participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHSdelermined to enter into this transaction. If it Is later determined that Ihe prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant teams
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by. reason of changed.
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction." "debarred." "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction." "participant." "person." "primary covered transaction." "pfincipai." "proposal." and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out In the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the ^
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who-ls debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that It vrill include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineligibillly and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered tranMCtions.

8. A participant In a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in,a
lower tier covered transaction that it Is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless ll'knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each-
participant may. but Is not required to. check the Nonprocuremenl List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system.of records
in order to render In good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge

Exhibit P - Certirotion Regarding Debarment. Suspension Conuactof InltialsV ■ —
Af>d Other Responsibility Mailers , 6/7/2021

curoHHS/nons Pegeio(2 Oale



Oocusign Envelope ID; 4EEF4BFB-2F8M752-9882-5gA76B29E75C

DocuSlgn Enveiope ID: S994DCE1-7232-4B7F-B519-8AA9AD66CC5D

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant In a
covered transaction knowingly enters Irlo a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily exduded from participation In this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. OHMS may terminate this transaction

. for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS " -
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and tielief, that It and Its

principals:
11.1. are not preserrtly debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal {contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly.charged by a govemmenta! entity
(Federal, State or local) with'commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this ̂ plication/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lovyer tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participanC as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that It arid its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. vrtiere the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Inellglblllty, and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower- tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:
•f

6/7/2021 I
W^Wtlepfan
Title:

President/CED

C-09
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera) Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foltowing
certification:

Contractor wilt comply, and will require any 8ut>9rantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondischminatbn raquirements, which may include:

> the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)} which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either In employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Emptoyment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 20b0d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
^slstance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or nadanal origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, In regard to employment and the delivery of.
services or t}enefits, in any program or actlviiy;

-the Americans with.Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), wrhich prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not Include
employment discrimination;

• 28 C.F.Ft. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which p.rovjde fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and nei9ht>orhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Acl(NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower F'roteclions, which protects empfoyees against
reprisal for certain virhistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or temnination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment..

-Exhibh 0
Contradof Inllbis
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religton, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy.of the firiding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicdl>l6 contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Idenlified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certificetion:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees tp comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

-DMuSlQMd br:r-Deeu9i9Ma Dr:
-fTaXe':'WV)ep1an
Title: President/CEO
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking riot be permitted in any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan..or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare.or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatierit drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a dvil monetary penalty of up to
SIOOO per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the peneral Provisions ̂ rees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 ar>d 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the'following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonat)le efforts to comply
/with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103^227, Part C, knovm as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

DMvSlvnM ky:

6/7/2021 I
Date WmeV"^^"^! epi an ■

Title. President/CEO

Exhbil H - Ce<tirica6on Ragftrding Contractor Inhlats
Environmental Tobacco Smoke 6/7/2021
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABiUTY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations. . ■ ^ ...

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aooregation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501..

g. "HITECH Act"-means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtrtle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security;of Individually identifiable Health
lnformation..45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 154 and amendments thereto.

I. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(9).

j. "Pfivacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or receivpd-by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. 55*

3/2014 - • Exhibit I Contractor Initials
Healih insuranca PoriabilJty Act '
Business Asaodate Agreament 6/7/2021
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I. 'Required bv Law* shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary'' shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health Information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and Is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute. ' .

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160.162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH . .

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.
I

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and adrhlnistralion of the Business Associate:
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for (he health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c.. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (1)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (il) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the

3/2014 Exhibit I Contfactof Inhiata^
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Aereement 6/7/2021
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions arxl shall abide by any. additional security safeguards.

(3) Ob1lQatlor>s and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement Including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security Incident lhat.may have an impact on the
.protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of Identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health Information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and Immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c.- The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of Its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of Its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business ̂ ^ale
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivih^^^

3/2014 EjdiiWM ConlrartorWUalS^
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who Shail be governed by standard Paragraph ̂ 13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. VVithin five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g., Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to' an individual In order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 1S4.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an iridividual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
ame;ndment' and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

J; Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR'Section
164.528. i. .

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request.for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shajl make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide ar) accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days fonvard such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy-end Security Ru.le, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

•I,, Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to trtpfw*
purposes that make the return or destruction Infeasible, for so long as Busine^

3/2014 EaWbill Contfattof inmateV'
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section ,
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes In, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's Itnowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure Is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miiscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended. ^

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and slate lavy.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d; Interoretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement shall be reeotved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 ExhiNIl Coniractof lnlUala>
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Seareoatlon. If any term or condUion of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Ag'reement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health-and Human Services

It&br:

Signature of Authorized Representative

Heather m. Moquin

Name of Authorized Representative
Chief executive officer, New Hampshire Hospital

President/ceo
Title of Authorized Representative

6/7/2021

Name of Autho

Title of Authoriz

Granite vna dba concord Regional vna

Contractor

$liy

Signalui^of^^ Representative
Beth Slepian

rized Representative

ed Representative

6/7/2021

Date Date

3/2014 Exhibit I

Health Insurance Porlability Acl
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation ar>d associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modincations result In a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award Is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following Information for any
subavrard or contract award.subject to the FFATA reporting requirements: t
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
A. NAICS code for cor^tracts / CFDA program nurnber for grants
6. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Ldcallon of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. tJnique identifier of the entity (DUNS P)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal govemment, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation Information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
award or award amendment is made,

the Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply wilh the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and ̂ ecutive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed Information as outlined above to the! NH'
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply wilh all applicable provisions of the Federal
Finartdai Accountability and Transparency Act

Contractor Name;

-MMSlgn^bir:

Diii
Title: President/CEO

ExftbK J - Ccnificatiofl Regarding the Federal Futxjtng Contractor (nUab

(5
Accountability And Transparency Ad (FFATA) CompCenco 6/7/2021
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FORMA

As the Contractor kJentified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

095520417

1. The DUNS nuifiber for your entity is;

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grarits. and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to Information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 at>ove Is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above Is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the frve most highly compensated officers in your business or
organizaUon are as follows:

Name:.

Name:.

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amounl:

Amount:

Amount:

Amounl:

CWDHH9/1107U

ExhibS J - Certificatjon Regarding Ihe Federal Funding
AccouniablKy And Transparency Act (FFATA) CompliaiKe

Page 2 of 2
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The''f6ilowing termsTnay be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

.2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
incident" in section twp (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Ihslilule of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Infcrmation" or "Confidenlial Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information Including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personalty Idenllfiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed In the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This Information Includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI),.FederarTax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User* means ariy person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate,- subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and-the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Iricident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characlerisiics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misroutlng of physical or electronic

F
V5. Laslupdato 1<V09/18 EidiibitK ConboctorInEUals
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of. unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, rriodification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network' means any network or segment of a network that Is'
not designated by the Stale of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure fpr.)the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's Identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
'  Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United

States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpaii C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information that Is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that Is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Conridential Information..

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Infonnation
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information In response to a

vs. La$l update 1^09/18 ^ Exhibit K Conlmclor Initials
OHHS tnfwmatlon
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be tMund by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivallve there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes thai are not Indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance vrllh the terms of this
Contract.

n. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Cohfidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated - by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
appltcalion's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the Internet.

2; Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use domputer disks
or portable-storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
•• hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud. Storage, to transmit

Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via ceriiried ground
mall within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and. PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confideritiai Data said devices must be encrypt^ and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

50
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device($) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure RIe Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data,- End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless' Devices. If End User Is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, ail
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contraci. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities; and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security avvareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic arxJ hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

' 5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HlTECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-matware utilities. The environment, as ar-6S

55^
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Inifrastnjcture.

B. pisposltlon '

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential .Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; arKJ will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization. or otherwise physically destroying the media (fpr example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-68, Rev Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute' of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and. validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy at! hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

^3. Unless otherwise specified. • wilhin thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY
\

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the OHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information coilected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Departrnent
conndential Information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transforrriation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the

.  media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In place to
detect potential security events -that can Impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidentiarinformatlon for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department conftdentia! Information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a.minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractof will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and proc^ures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department 5ystem(s). Agreements wilt be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized. ,

6. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate puiiuant to 45
CFR 160.103,.the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement. x

9. The Contractor will svork with the Depariment at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Depariment and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey \MII be completed
annually, or an aiternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Slate of New. Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United Stales unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Inforrnatlon Security Office
leadership member within the Department. ^

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

•09
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must In all other respects,
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PMI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, Including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually Identifiable health
information and as applicable under.State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security thai is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at ht1ps:/Avww.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.hlm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification' and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This Includes a confidential Information breach, computer

'  security incident, or suspected, breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties In connection with purposes Identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss; theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this Information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, a
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such Information.

0
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Infonnatlon received under this Contract- and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must tie stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric idenlifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all tirnes when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must 'be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances Involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential Information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application. ,

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, Including ,the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy. Officer and Security Officer of any
'  Security Incidents and Breaches immediaieiy, at the email addresses provided in

Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addlllon to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with ail applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Inddenls;

2. Determine If personally Identifiable Information Is involved in Incidents;

3. • Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

09P
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VI.

5. Determir>e whether Breach notincation is required, and. if so. Identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrlvacy0ffiC6r@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer;

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.90v
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